
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE  
ROWAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

October 2, 2006 – 7:00 PM 
J. NEWTON COHEN, SR. ROOM, ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

 
Present:  Arnold S. Chamberlain, Chairman 

Jim Sides, Vice-Chairman 
Steve Blount, Member 

Frank Tadlock, Member 
Chad Mitchell, Member  

 
County Manager William Cowan, Clerk to the Board Carolyn Athey, County 
Attorney Jay Dees and Finance Director Leslie Heidrick were present. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain convened the meeting at 7:00 pm. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell provided the Invocation.   
 
Assistant Master Bill Marlowe and troop members of Boy Scout Troop #334 from 
Union Lutheran Church led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
CONSIDER ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

• Chairman Chamberlain moved to add a discussion and a vote for the 
renaming of the South Rowan Regional Library.  The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Sides and passed unanimously.  Chairman 
Chamberlain added the discussion as agenda item #2a. 

 
• County Manager William Cowan asked the Board to consider adding a 

memorandum from Don Bringle, Dan Nicholas Park Manager, concerning 
the pre-bid process for the petting barn.   

 
Commissioner Blount moved, Commissioner Mitchell seconded and the 
vote to add the memorandum to the agenda passed unanimously.  
Chairman Chamberlain added the issue as agenda item #8a. 

 
• Commissioner Sides moved to add a discussion regarding a Christmas 

party for foster children and hosted by the Department of Social Services 
Board each year.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Mitchell 



and passed unanimously.  Chairman Chamberlain added the discussion 
as agenda item #8b. 

 
CONSIDER DELETIONS FROM THE AGENDA 
There were no deletions from the agenda. 
 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
Commissioner Sides moved, Commissioner Mitchell seconded and the vote to 
approve the agenda passed unanimously.   
 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
Commissioner Sides moved, Commissioner Blount seconded and the vote to 
approve the minutes of the September 14, 2006 meeting passed unanimously. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
Chairman Chamberlain briefly mentioned the letter received from the North 
Carolina Manufactured Housing Institute, which congratulated the County for 
creating a program with resources for funding and encouraging the removal of 
dilapidated homes. 
 
1.  CONSIDERATION OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 
Commissioner Mitchell moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Blount and passed unanimously. 
 
The Consent Agenda consisted of the following items: 

A. Approval of 2006-07 Annual Lease for Daymark Recovery Services, Inc. 
B. Set Public Hearing for Z 06-06 for October 16, 2006 

 
Commissioner Sides questioned Consent Agenda Item A and the delay for the 
renewal of the lease for Daymark Recovery Services, Inc.  Chairman 
Chamberlain said the lease renewal should have been submitted to the Board 
sooner but due to an oversight it had not been handled.  County Manager William 
Cowan added that Staff had discussed the need to develop a system to track the 
term dates for all leases.  Mr. Cowan said Daymark had continued to remit their 
monthly payments and that the annual lease amount had been included in the 
budget for fiscal year 2006-07.   
 
2a.  ADDITION:  DISCUSSION/VOTE FOR RENAMING OF SOUTH ROWAN 
REGIONAL LIBRARY 
Chairman Chamberlain recalled how Commissioner Tadlock had been 
instrumental in the building of the South Rowan Regional Library.  Chairman 
Chamberlain said Commissioner Tadlock had been right to pursue the project 
and that it would not have been built when it was without Commissioner 
Tadlock’s urging. 
 

 2



Chairman Chamberlain moved to rename the South Rowan Regional Library, 
“forevermore,” the “Frank T. Tadlock South Rowan Regional Library.”  
Commissioner Sides seconded the motion. 
 
Commissioner Blount said it had been an honor and a privilege to work with 
Commissioner Tadlock over the past decade.  Commissioner Blount said 
Commissioner Tadlock had led the charge on many issues and that he keenly 
remembered Commissioner Tadlock’s efforts to have the south rowan water line 
built.  Commissioner Blount said it had been an honor to work and serve with 
Commissioner Tadlock’s calm and insightful leadership.  
 
Commissioner Mitchell said he had only been able to work with Commissioner 
Tadlock for 4 years but during those years Commissioner Tadlock had taught 
him by example.  Commissioner Mitchell said he could not think of a finer legacy 
for the South Rowan Regional Library than to name it after Commissioner 
Tadlock. 
 
Commissioner Sides said that as a member of the Library Board, he could say 
that the South Rowan Regional Library was a well-accepted library that had seen 
phenomenal usage.  Commissioner Sides said the public was in support of the 
library and that he was certainly in support of naming the library the Frank T. 
Tadlock South Rowan Regional Library. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain said that through the years he and Commissioner 
Tadlock had not always agreed.  Chairman Chamberlain said he would like to 
publicly state, “Commissioner Tadlock has taught Commissioner Chamberlain a 
lot about forgiveness.”  Chairman Chamberlain said those who come in contact 
with him would benefit from what Commissioner Tadlock had taught him.  
Chairman Chamberlain thanked Commissioner Tadlock and said he was “one of 
the best men that I’ve ever been associated with.”   
 
Upon being put to a vote, the motion passed unanimously to rename the South 
Rowan Regional Library the “Frank T. Tadlock South Rowan Regional Library”. 
 
A lengthy round of applause and a standing ovation followed the renaming of the 
library. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain recognized Commissioner Tadlock’s family members in 
the audience by asking them to stand.  The family members expressed their 
appreciation to the Board. 
 
2.  PUBLIC HEARING FOR MAJORITY PETITION FOR PROPOSED ROAD 
NAME OF ROLLING ACRES DRIVE  
Fredda Greer of the Rowan County Planning Department presented the Majority 
Petition for the proposed road name of Rolling Acres Drive.  Ms. Greer reported 
that Robert Arnold was the petition leader and had submitted a petition with 3 out 

 3



of 4 signatures in support of the road name Rolling Acres Drive.  Staff 
recommended approval. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain opened the public hearing to entertain citizen input 
regarding the proposed road name.  With no one wishing to address the Board, 
Chairman Chamberlain closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell moved, Commissioner Blount seconded and the vote to 
approve the road name of Rolling Acres Drive passed unanimously. 
 
3.  PUBLIC HEARING FOR Z 05-06  
Shane Stewart of the Rowan County Planning Department provided the Staff 
Report for Z 05-06.  Mr. Stewart explained that Harold Wiggins had created 
Performance Park, a 12-lot industrial park in the fall of 2000.   
 
Mr. Stewart used a power point presentation as he described the park’s location 
off the intersection of Highway 152 and Shinn Farm Road.  Pit Road, the internal 
subdivision street, provides access to the 12 lots in the park.   
 
Mr. Stewart said the request before the Board was for an expansion of 2 lots 
along the existing road frontage and to rezone those parcels from RA to IND.       
 
Mr. Stewart said no one had spoke in opposition to the request at the Planning 
Board meeting.  Mr. Stewart said the Planning Board had voted unanimously for 
approval of the request.  Mr. Stewart called the Board’s attention to the 
Statement of Consistency, which was recommended by the Planning Board. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain opened the public hearing to entertain citizen input 
regarding the proposed rezoning.  The following citizens addressed the Board: 
 

• Wayne Ervin said he was involved in the sale of the property as the agent 
for Frances Neel.  Mr. Ervin said the lots were part of a 15-acre tract that 
was not being farmed because of the trees on the land.  Mr. Ervin said, 
they were planning to continue farming the remainder of the land.  Mr. 
Ervin said the rezoning was being requested because the 2 lots touch Pit 
Road and the rezoning would make the properties contiguous with what is 
there.   

• Frances Neel of 123 Neel Ranch Road in Mooresville said the rezoning 
would make the 2 lots contiguous with the properties along Pit Road.  Ms. 
Neel said her goal was to continue the family heritage and be a good 
steward of the land.  Ms. Neel said she had insisted that the deeds include 
a clause that would prohibit the property from being sold at a later date for 
the production of asphalt.  Ms. Neel said she had also signed an 
agreement that if her property was sold at a later time, that those deeds 
would also include the clause to prohibit the production of asphalt. 

 

 4



With no additional citizen input, Chairman Chamberlain closed the public hearing. 
Commissioner Sides moved for approval of Z-05-06 along with the Statement of 
Consistency as presented by the Planning Board.  The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Mitchell and passed unanimously. 
 
The above-referenced Statement of Consistency was presented as follows: 
Although Rowan County does not have an adopted land-use plan, this request 
meets the purpose and intent of the Industrial District as evidenced in the Rowan 
County Zoning Ordinance.  This request complies with the location of the site 
having access to a major highway in NC Highway 152 via Shinn Farm Road.  
Furthermore, this zone change will complete the property accessible by Pit Road 
and additions to Performance Park. 
 
4.  QUASI JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING FOR PCUR 03-06  
Chairman Chamberlain read the Chairman’s Speech (Exhibit A) and declared the 
public hearing for PCUR 03-06 to be in session.  Chairman Chamberlain said the 
hearing would focus on an application submitted by High Rock Development 
Company for the properties located along the 6700 block of Goodman Lake 
Road.  The application is for the rezoning of a portion of Tax Parcels 606-029 
and 606H-001 from Rural Agricultural (RA) to Commercial, Business, Industrial 
with a Conditional Use District (CBI-CUD) to accommodate a number of 
commercial uses. 
 
The Clerk swore in those wishing to provide testimony in the case. 
 
Shane Stewart of the Rowan County Planning Department, 402 North Main 
Street in Salisbury presented the Staff Report (Exhibit B).  Mr. Stewart said the 
Board was familiar with the Sunset Pointe as it had had several requests from 
the project.  Mr. Stewart said the issue came to the Planning Board 
approximately 2 years ago with a recommendation that the project come back to 
the Commissioners.  Mr. Stewart said, “This is 2 years in the works.” 
 
Mr. Stewart used a power point presentation (Exhibit C) to point out the property 
and the surrounding areas. 
 
Mr. Stewart described the approximate 5-acre tract as being at the entrance of 
Sunset Pointe Development, the first cul-de-sac street, and in front of 5 
residences at Pebble Point.   
 
Mr. Stewart referred to the site plan (Exhibit D) and said the proposed sit-down 
style restaurant was approximately 7,000 square feet; a 5,000 square foot gas 
station/marina/fast food restaurant, an associated 4-pump fuel island and a 
22,000 square foot enclosed boat storage facility proposed as 3 stories.  Mr. 
Stewart said further back on the smaller tract there was a 600 square foot 
proposed maintenance shed and that the rest would be one-story boat storage.  
Mr. Stewart said he would like to draw the Board’s attention to a few things on 

 5



the site plan (Exhibit D) that would deviate somewhat from the zoning ordinance 
but was acceptable during the planned development request.  Mr. Stewart said 
the request would sever the two buildings along the common wall and would also 
result in a lot depth less than the typical 100’ requirement.  The plan was 
proposing a reduced rear setback since adjoining properties are part of the 
project.   
 
Mr. Stewart said by function, the request was similar to a neighborhood business 
style concept.  Mr. Stewart said that since the County did not have a mixed-use 
zoning district, the applicant must take an approach that would meet the criteria 
of a CBI zone since it was approved for the Planned Development Subdivision 
(PDS) concept.   
 
Mr. Stewart highlighted the Zoning Criteria in the Staff Report (Exhibit B).  Mr. 
Stewart referred to Attachment B of the Staff Report (Exhibit B) as he discussed 
the compatibility of uses.  Mr. Stewart said the developer had proposed an 
architectural theme for the development that is somewhat consistent throughout 
the development.  Mr. Stewart used the power point presentation (Exhibit C) to 
show the proposed lake lodge, which he said was consistent with the restaurant 
and gas station.  Mr. Stewart said the gas station canopy would have stone 
columns and a shingled roof while the boat storage would be enclosed within a 
structure that would most likely be metal, although no faced information had been 
provided.  Mr. Stewart said compatibility for incorporation of the project was most 
essential with the Pebble Point subdivision, especially for the 5 residences 
across the street.  Mr. Stewart said Pebble Point did have a similar type of 
residential use and property values as those that were anticipated for Sunset 
Pointe.  Mr. Stewart continued with the power point presentation (Exhibit C) to 
describe the proposed uses and also the conditions in the vicinity, which included 
a 40-unit campground, commercial uses, mini-warehouse storage and an 
automotive repair center. 
 
Mr. Stewart said concerns had been raised regarding the impacts on Goodman 
Lake Road.  Mr. Stewart referred to page 4 of the Staff Report (Exhibit B) and 
said that Goodman Lake Road was classified as a minor thoroughfare by the 
Salisbury Thoroughfare Plan.  The road has an approximate 8500 vehicle per 
day capacity compared to the most recent traffic counts of 2004 of 1100.  Mr. 
Stewart highlighted the estimated number of vehicle trips the uses were expected 
to generate in addition to the existing uses already platted in Sunset Pointe.  Mr. 
Stewart said the total traffic count would bring the road to approximately half 
capacity and an average daily volume of over 4800 vehicles per day, suggesting 
that the road would have a similar volume to that of Bringle Ferry Road.     
 
Mr. Stewart said Attachment C of the Staff Report (Exhibit B) was the applicant’s 
response to the evaluation criteria.   
 

 6



Mr. Stewart said Attachment D of the Staff Report (Exhibit B) was the submittal 
for the appraisal, suggesting that the development would have a positive 
influence on values.   
 
Mr. Stewart discussed Item C of the Conditional Use Criteria that was listed in 
the Staff Report (Exhibit B).  Mr. Stewart said Staff had originally been concerned 
with the number of proposed residences and commercial uses with the closest 
water point source being near the Bay Ridge Subdivision.  Mr. Stewart said 
Attachment E contained in the Staff Report (Exhibit B) was a letter of 
understanding between the applicant and the fire department, which stated the 
applicant’s willingness to assist the fire department.  Mr. Stewart said the fire 
department does not object to the project and the applicant is willing to construct 
a water point source to be used for the surrounding communities. 
 
Mr. Stewart referred to page 6 of the Staff Report (Exhibit B) and said glare had 
been another concern raised.  Staff suggested that a lighting plan be provided in 
order to measure the impacts from the lighting level changes.   Mr. Stewart said 
the lighting plan was included in the agenda packet (Exhibit E).  Mr. Stewart used 
the power point presentation (Exhibit C) as he described the light fixture features 
and their locations.  Mr. Stewart also showed photographs of the Blowing Rock 
Market and said the same lighting was to be expected for the Sunset Pointe 
facility.  Mr. Stewart said the lighting plan measurements dissipate to around 0 at 
property lines.   
 
Mr. Stewart discussed the visual impacts of the project.  Mr. Stewart used the 
power point presentation (Exhibit C) to point out the increase in buffering after 
revisions to the site plan.  Mr. Stewart said a representative from Duke Power 
stated they would not allow a three phase line to be buried that extends from 
above ground lines on opposite ends, which as a result, disallows trees over 15’ 
along the edge of the road right-of-way.  Mr. Stewart said revisions to the 
buffering incorporated a row of Green Giant evergreen trees along the edge of 
the parking area with evergreen shrubs, crepe myrtles and maple trees.  Mr. 
Stewart said the Green Giant trees would be 8’ tall at planting and were fast-
growing at approximately one to two feet per year.  Mr. Stewart said it would take 
several years to completely screen the 30’ boat storage structure. 
 
Mr. Stewart said the 2.17-acre tract did not have any proposed screening and 
that Staff had recommended a screen be put in place.  Mr. Stewart said there 
were 7 residences within visual distance of the smaller tract. 
 
Mr. Stewart reported that the Planning Board met twice regarding the request 
and also had an Ad Hoc Committee to review the application.  Mr. Stewart said 
several people had spoke at the Planning Board meetings and were currently 
present for the Commission meeting.  Mr. Stewart said the Planning Board had 
put 5 conditions in place, which had been amended since their meeting, and 
were included in the site plan (Exhibit E).   

 7



Mr. Stewart said Staff encouraged 2 additional conditions: 
1. Provide a row of evergreen trees to screen the western and northern limits 

of the boat storage area on the 2.17-acre parcel. 
2. Stand-alone signage must be ground mounted (not on pole) containing no 

flashing or scrolling lights. 
  
 
Mr. Stewart referred to the procedural issues (Exhibit A) that were previously 
read by Chairman Chamberlain and the findings of fact listed in the Staff Report 
(Exhibit B).  Mr. Stewart said the Statement of Consistency and the Statement of 
Reasonableness were necessary and were included as Attachment F of the Staff 
Report (Exhibit B).   
 
Commissioner Sides asked if the property owners had agreed to the 2 additional 
conditions that were recommended by Planning Staff?  Mr. Stewart said he had 
mentioned the recommendations to Dan Fisher, the applicant, who was in 
agreement at the time.  Mr. Stewart said the “this” has changed several times 
and he suggested that the Board verify the information with the applicant.   
 
Chairman Chamberlain called the applicant, Dan Fisher, forward.  Mr. Fisher said 
the project had been developing for 2 years and was proposed as a mixed-use 
development in the beginning.  Mr. Fisher said the project was finally coming to 
fruition.  Mr. Fisher said he had closed on 68 of the lots in the development; 18 
more lots were sold and were in the closing process and only 26 lots remained 
unsold.  Mr. Fisher said 2 years ago his tax bill for the property was $10,000 and 
this past year the bill was $30,000.  Mr. Fisher said the tax base was increasing.  
Mr. Fisher said the project was top-notch and no expense had been spared.  Mr. 
Fisher said the development would be a credit to the community and to the 
County.  Mr. Fisher said he had worked with the fire department and also with the 
neighbors in an attempt to appease everyone.  Mr. Fisher said there were 7 lots 
across street and 4 of the 7 owners were not opposed to the project.  Mr. Fisher 
said a mail survey was sent to 163 property owners with an overwhelmingly 
favorable response for the project.  Mr. Fisher said he realized it “looked bad” 
that 3 of the property owners across the street did not receive the survey and he 
apologized for this.   
 
Commissioner Sides questioned Mr. Fisher regarding the 2 additional conditions 
imposed by Planning Staff.  Mr. Fisher said at the rear of the property there 
would be a fenced boat storage area and a maintenance shack and that he had 
no problem with screening these. 
 
Chairman Chamberlain opened the public hearing regarding PCUR 03-06.  
Chairman Chamberlain asked for a show of hands from those who planned to 
speak in favor of the project and 7 hands were raised.  Chairman Chamberlain 
asked for a show of hands from those who were in opposition to the project and 2 
hands were raised.  

 8



The following citizens addressed the Board. 
1. Bryan Robinette stated he is a resident of 6751 Goodman Lake Road or 

parcel 37 on the tax map.  Mr. Robinette said his property was directly 
across from the proposed rezoned area.  Mr. Robinette said he, along with 
the neighbors in lots 38, 36 and 35 have had concerns from the beginning 
regarding screening and safety issues.  Mr. Robinette said since the 
screening had been addressed and was a little more acceptable he would 
focus on the safety issue.  Mr. Robinette discussed the increased vehicle 
trips per day that the project would generate.  Mr. Robinette said 
Goodman Lake Road was approximately 16’ wide, 2 lanes and no turning 
lanes or shoulders on either side.  Mr. Robinette reported that information 
obtained from the NCDOT showed that there had been 24 reported 
accidents over a 3-year period, or an accident every 6 weeks.  Mr. 
Robinette said the increased traffic represented that there would be an 
accident every 2 weeks, which would be unacceptable.  Mr. Robinette said 
he had 2 small children with 1 on the way; therefore he had concerns with 
safety issues with his children playing in the front yard where the traffic 
would be.  Mr. Robinette said the number of large trucks and boat trailers 
on the narrow road created an increased impact on traffic accidents.  Mr. 
Robinette said there are no posted speed limit signs on Goodman Lake 
Road, which by default goes to a 55 mph speed limit.  Mr. Robinette said 
“we” contacted the NCDOT “a couple of months ago” to recommend a 
review of the speed limit.  Mr. Robinette said he had not been able to 
reach anyone with the NCDOT to find out if the road was under review.  
Mr. Robinette felt that a recommendation from the Commissioners asking 
the NCDOT to look into the safety issues along Goodman Lake Road 
would “go a long way towards helping to resolve some of these issues.”  
Mr. Robinette said “we” have a conflict relating to the proposed gas station 
and fast food restaurant.  Mr. Robinette said the neighbors across the 
road didn’t really have a problem with the marina or the sit-down 
restaurant but were concerned with the fast food/gas pumps directly 
across the road.  Mr. Robinette provided the Clerk to the Board with a 
copy of his concerns (Exhibit F). 

2. Freddie Sides of Mainsail Road in Anchor Downs said he was highly in 
favor of the request.  Mr. Sides said he had been a resident of High Rock 
Lake for over 30 years.  Mr. Sides said there is one marina, which is highly 
inconvenient for the majority of the people that populate the “upper part” of 
the lake.  Mr. Sides described the project as a first class operation and 
said it would serve not only those who live on the lake but also be 
convenient for those living within a 5-mile radius.  Mr. Sides said he 
believed High Rock Lake to be the “sleeper of this county” and that he felt 
the lake was a draw for the whole county.  Mr. Sides said recreation was 
an important factor in attracting industry to the area and that the lake 
should be promoted. 

3. Steve Potter said he had lived on High Rock Lake for approximately 24 
years and that he saw the lake as the biggest asset in the county.  Mr. 

 9



Potter said he had seen what Lake Norman had done for other counties, 
the number of businesses it had attracted and the number of jobs it had 
created.  Mr. Potter said the County needed the commercial development.  
Mr. Potter said the development would provide others in the County an 
access to High Rock Lake that they don’t currently have.  Mr. Potter said 
people would find it advantageous to have place to store a boat. 

4. James Freeman of Mainsail Road spoke in favor of the project.  Mr. 
Freeman said he was present to speak on behalf of the Miller Ferry 
Volunteer Fire Department.  Mr. Freeman said he was a board member for 
the fire department and he publicly recognized Mr. Fisher for his 
cooperation in working with the fire department.  Mr. Freeman said Mr. 
Fisher had been “over generous” with his time and resources to meet the 
needs of the fire department.  Mr. Freeman referred to the letter of 
understanding (contained in the Staff Report, Exhibit B) and said Mr. 
Fisher had met all of the fire department’s concerns.  Mr. Freeman said 
Mr. Fisher would not only be helping the area but the entire fire district by 
providing an additional water point source, which was critical in the rural 
fire department system across the county.  Mr. Freeman said the fire 
department also had no opposition to the height of the buildings in the 
project.  Mr. Freeman said the project was good for the community and 
would help the fire department’s tax base.  Mr. Freeman said the fire 
department was in favor of the project and expressed hope that the Board 
would vote favorably for the request.  Miller Ferry Fire Department Chief 
Grey Shue was also present and said he appreciated what Mr. Fisher was 
trying to do for community. 

5. Kevin Gilland of 6435 Goodman Lake Road said he lives less than ¼ mile 
from the proposed development.  Mr. Gilland said he thought the 
proposed project was excellent in all endeavors.  Mr. Gilland said he 
understood the safety concerns expressed by Bryan Robinette and said 
he hoped the NCDOT would lower the speed limit.  Mr. Gilland said each 
day there are cars parked along areas designated as No Parking Areas.  
Mr. Gilland said he felt the marina would take in a number of the boats 
that are being parked along the roadside and help to alleviate some of the 
parking problems.  Mr. Gilland said the restaurant would be convenient 
since the nearest restaurant/convenience stores were 5 to 6 miles from his 
residence.  Mr. Gilland said Mr. Fisher was putting in a needed top-notch 
facility and that he hoped the Board would support the request.   

6. Charles Culp said he had lived on the lake all of his life.  Mr. Culp 
described the lake as beautiful and that “they” are making it better.  Mr. 
Culp said he lives approximately 1 mile from the proposed development 
and that he supported the request. 

 
Chairman Chamberlain allowed Mr. Fisher one additional comment.  Mr. Fisher 
requested that the Board ask the NCDOT to replace the No Parking signs along 
Goodman Lake Road to Tow Away signs so that law enforcement could enforce 
the towing. 

 10



With no further citizen input, Chairman Chamberlain closed the public hearing.  
 
Commissioner Sides moved approval of the zoning request with the 5 conditions 
placed by the Planning Board and the 2 additional conditions placed by Planning 
Staff.  Commissioner Sides noted that one of the conditions was to recommend 
to the Division of Highways that the speed limit be reduced and to also ask to 
replace the No Parking signs to Tow Away signs.  Commissioner Blount 
seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Sides moved for approval of the conditional use permit based on 
the findings of fact.  Commissioner Blount seconded the motion and the motion 
passed unanimously.  Commissioner Sides read the findings of fact as follows: 
 

1. The development of the property in accordance with the proposed 
conditions will not materially endanger the public health or safety, and 

2. That the development of the property in accordance with the proposed 
conditions will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting 
property, or that the development is a public necessity, and 

3. That the location and character of the development in accordance with the 
proposed conditions will be in general harmony with the area in which it is 
located and in general conformity with any adopted county plans. 

 
Commissioner Sides moved, Commissioner Blount seconded and the vote for 
approval of the Statement of Reasonableness and the Statement of Consistency 
as presented passed unanimously.   
 
The above-referenced Statement of Reasonableness was presented as follows: 

• Landscaping plan provided by Oldham Planning and Design illustrates the 
consideration made for adjoining properties in providing the maximum 
screening along the front of the development. 

• Lighting levels provided by Peter N. Glass and Associates suggest 
exposure levels are appropriate for a neighborhood scale. 

• Stone façade, consistent architectural theme, and current property values 
within Sunset Pointe suggest this request is a good fit for a 
“neighborhood” business. 

• Analysis by RG Rowland suggests this project will be a positive influence 
on property values. 

• Approved commercial driveway permit and the lack of required 
improvements indicate the anticipated traffic count vs. road design and 
capacity of Goodman Lake Road meets the requirements of the North 
Carolina Department of Transportation. 

• Testimony given suggests many area residents support a community 
retail/service center to limit trips made to Salisbury. 

 
 
 

 11



The above-referenced Statement of Consistency was presented as follows: 
Although Rowan County does not have an adopted land-use plan, the 
commercial request is part of an approved Planned Development Subdivision 
meeting applicable county standards using a piecemeal tactic for zoning 
residential and non-residential components separately.  As evidenced in the 
statement of reasonableness, anticipated impacts have been adequately 
addressed in keeping with the allowance of small-scale requests in the CBI 
district’s purpose and intent of serving the overall public good. 
 
5.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF SNIA 07-06 
Shane Stewart of the Rowan County Planning Department said the applicant, 
Hank Childers, wished to build an 11,440 square foot building.  Mr. Stewart said 
the property was in the Coddle Creek Watershed and Mr. Childers would reach 
approximately 59% of the 70% impervious coverage available.  Staff 
recommended approval. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell moved, Commissioner Blount seconded and the vote for 
approval of SNIA 07-06 passed unanimously. 
 
6.  PUBLIC HEARING FOR ZTA 01-06 
Planning Manager Ed Muire said he would not go through each of the proposed 
ordinance changes as the Board had reviewed the changes at the September 14, 
2006 meeting.  A copy of the proposed text changes is attached to these 
minutes.   
 
Mr. Muire referred to page 2 of the staff memo and reviewed the following 
recommended action for the Board: 

1. All references to “reasonable residential accessory use” are removed from 
the ordinance, i.e. lines 17-20 on page 3 and lines 16-18 on page 7. 

2. Motion to adopt the ordinance should include a provision for review at six 
(6) months to gauge impacts of free disposal of nuisance manufactured 
homes at the county landfill. 

 
Mr. Muire said that while the landfill will accept the manufactured homes at no 
charge, there are still tipping fees involved.  Mr. Muire said Staff was proposing 
to use a $5,000 line item in the Planning Department’s budget to pay the tipping 
fees.  Mr. Muire estimated the tipping fee at $250 per unit for up to 20 singlewide 
manufactured homes.  Mr. Muire said when the new Board is seated, the 
Commissioners can review the program in 6 months to determine if they would 
like for it to continue.  Mr. Muire emphasized that the program would only focus 
on public nuisance abatements and was not for those who have homes that had 
never been considered a nuisance.   
 
In response to a query from Commissioner Sides, Mr. Muire said 75% of the 
homes are in such bad shape that they will have to be dismantled and taken to 
the landfill in truckloads.   

 12



Chairman Chamberlain opened the public hearing to entertain citizen input 
regarding the proposed text amendments for the Manufactured Home Storage 
Ordinance.  With no one wishing to address the Board, Chairman Chamberlain 
closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Sides moved for approval of ZTA-01-06 with Staff’s 
recommendations.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Mitchell and 
passed unanimously. 
 
7.  CONSIDERATION OF URGET REPAIR PROGRAM  
Alicia Broadway of Benchmark CMR, Inc. was present to discuss funding 
availability for the 2007 Urgent Repair Program (URP).  The program allows for 
local governments to apply for up to $75,000 from the North Carolina Housing 
Finance Agency with no required matching funds. 
 
Commissioner Sides moved, Commissioner Mitchell seconded and the vote to 
allow Benchmark CMR, Inc. to submit an application for the County passed 
unanimously. 
 
Ms. Broadway reported that the application deadline was October 20th and 
Planning Manager Ed Muire commented that there was a $50 fee to file the 
application with no guarantees for funding. 
 
8.  APPROVAL OF ROWAN TRANSIT SYSTEM CONTRACTS & BUDGET 
AMENDMENT  
Senior Services Director Clyde Fahnestock was present to discuss Rowan 
Transit System (RTS) Advisory Committee’s recommendations regarding the 
following 3 contracts.  Carl Repsher, Director of Rowan Vocational Opportunities 
and member of the RTS Advisory Committee was also present. 
 
1. Facility Lease Agreement with the Board of Education (BOE).   Mr. Fahnestock 
said a 10-year facility lease between the BOE and RTS had expired 2 years ago.  
The BOE had allowed RTS offices to remain in the same office space.  Mr. 
Fahnestock said RTS was requesting Board approval of the school facility lease 
with a signature from the Commission Chairman.  
 
Commissioner Mitchell moved for approval of the lease.  Commissioner Blount 
seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
2.  Acceptance of Additional EDTAP & RGP Funding.  Mr. Fahnestock said the 
General Assembly had moved additional funds to the EDTAP and RGP operating 
grants to cover the rising fuel prices.  Mr. Fahnestock said the additional EDTAP 
funding in the amount of $26,458 would bring the total EDTAP fiscal year ’07 
total to $100,084.  No matching funds are required for the EDTAP funds.  The 
additional RGP funds in the amount of $51,261 required $5,696 in matching 

 13



funds bringing the total for fiscal year ’07 to $151,140.  RTS requested Board 
approval to accept the additional grants and the proposed distribution of funds. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell moved for approval to receive the EDTAP and RGP 
funding and also for approval of the budget amendment.  The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Blount and passed unanimously.   
 
3.  Extension of the MV Transportation Inc. Contract.  Mr. Fahnestock said the 
County owns vans that it leases to MV Transportation, Inc., a private 
transportation company.  Mr. Fahnestock said the Board had awarded the 
original contract to MV Transportation in 2003 and that RTS was pleased with the 
services that had been provided.  Mr. Fahnestock said MV Transportation had 
submitted a proposal for an extension of their contract and that Staff had 
negotiated lower prices with them.  Mr. Fahnestock recommended a one-year 
extension to the contract, expiring on September 30, 2007.  Mr. Fahnestock also 
pointed out the recommended provisions on the last page of the information in 
the agenda packet.   
 
Commissioner Sides moved for approval of the extension of the MV 
Transportation contract with the recommended provisions.  Commissioner Blount 
seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
8a.  ADDITION:  PREBID FOR PETTING BARN AT DAN NICHOLAS PARK   
County Manager William Cowan said the Parks and Recreation Department was 
requesting permission to proceed with the bidding process for the petting barn at 
Dan Nicholas Park.  Mr. Cowan said the Board had appropriated $171,970 and 
that Park Staff had assured him that no additional monies would be needed for 
the project. 
 
Commissioner Blount moved, Commissioner Sides seconded and the vote for 
approval of the request as submitted passed unanimously. 
 
8b. ADDITION:  DISCUSSION REGARDING DSS CHRISTMAS PARTY FOR 
FOSTER CHILDREN 
Commissioner Sides explained that each year the Department of Social Services 
(DSS) and its Board of Directors sponsor a Christmas party for all of the foster 
children in Rowan County.  Commissioner Sides said the party for 2006 was 
scheduled for December 2nd at the Cooperative Extension office.  Commissioner 
Sides said the party consists of a meal and each child is provided with gifts.  
Commissioner Sides said the DSS Board members contribute funds for the party 
and that in 2005 the Commissioners also allocated $250 from its surplus to assist 
with the event. 
 
Commissioner Sides moved to allocate $250 from the budgeted surplus for the 
purpose of buying pizzas for the Christmas party for the foster children.  The 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Blount and passed unanimously.  

 14



9.  DISCUSSION REGADING POSSIBLE TIME CHANGE FOR FIRST 
MEETING IN DECEMBER  
Chairman Chamberlain opened the floor for discussion concerning a possible 
time change for the December 4, 2006 Commission meeting.  By consensus, and 
after conferring with the Commission candidates in the audience, the Board 
agreed to hold the December 4, 2006 meeting at 7:00 pm. 
 
10.  DISCUSSION REGARDING UPDATE ON ROWAN COUNTY SHERIFF’S 
DEPARTMENT (LANDIS LOCATION)  
Ken Deal, Director of Administration provided the Board with an update on the 
costs of renovating the Landis facility for the Rowan County Sheriff’s Department.  
Mr. Deal said approximately $12,055 had been spent on remodeling costs and 
the roofing repairs were an additional $26,310. 
 
County Manager William Cowan explained that the budget for the project was 
$20,000 and that due to the increase, the Board needed to revisit the issue.  Mr. 
Cowan said a budget amendment could be prepared for the next board meeting 
or that the board could go ahead and authorize the transfer of funds from 
contingency.  Mr. Cowan suggested that the Board authorize a total of $55,000 
for the project.   
 
Commissioner Sides felt the Board should proceed with the project and he 
moved to authorize the transfer of funds from contingency.  The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Mitchell and passed unanimously. 
 
11.  UPDATE ON ZONING VIOLATIONS 
County Attorney Jay Dees briefed the Board on several zoning violations.  
Planning Manager Ed Muire used a power point presentation to show pictures of 
the first violation. 
 

1. Melvin McAllister of 255 Carriker Farms Road – Mr. Dees said Mr. 
McAllister had basically ignored citations and notices from the County for 
over 9 months.  Mr. Dees said fines were in excess of $25,000 and 
running at $100 per day.  Mr. Dees said he planned to file an abatement 
action and request to collect the fines.    

2. Geraldine Blevins of 120 Yadkin Baptist Church Road – Mr. Dees said the 
case involved solid waste storage and minimum housing code issues.  
Barry Motsinger, Codes Enforcement Manager and Lori Swaim of 
Environmental Services came forward to provide additional information.  

 
In response to a query from Chairman Chamberlain, Ms. Swaim said Ms. Blevins 
had not allowed Staff to take pictures of the property. 
 
Mr. Dees said there had been some effort to clean up the front of the property but 
that there were substantial issues down the side and rear of the property.  Mr. 
Dees said entry into the house was not possible because the doors were 

 15



blocked.  Mr. Dees said if the County moved forward with any action, it implicated 
larger issues such as housing and where the property owner would go.  Mr. Dees 
said the property owner and her adult son are not living in house. 

 
Ms. Swaim said the complaints began from the neighbors several years ago.  
Ms. Swaim said over the course of years, Ms. Blevins was issued violation 
notices and she would then clean up enough to get by.  Ms. Swaim said most 
recently Ms. Blevins had done “nothing” and she was living in the car in her 
driveway.  Ms. Swaim said the car itself was also full of trash with just enough 
room for her and her son to sit in the car.  Ms. Swaim said there are materials all 
over the yard.  Ms. Swaim said Ms. Blevins could not physically go into the house 
because there was so much trash.  Ms. Swaim said the restroom was being used 
outdoors and behind the house.    Ms. Swaim said there were several vehicles on 
the property full of trash.  Ms. Swaim asked the Board for direction on how to 
proceed. 

 
Ms. Swaim confirmed to Chairman Chamberlain that Staff had exhausted all 
efforts to resolve the matter.   

 
Mr. Dees said the department had gone above and beyond the normal 
requirements due to the sensitive issue of what would happen to the property 
owner if the house were condemned.  Mr. Dees added that the Department of 
Social Services (DSS) had been contacted and was also looking into the issue. 

 
Mr. Motsinger said the property owner had been told they could not live in the 
house.   

 
Chairman Chamberlain asked if the County could have the house torn down if 
the County condemned the house.  Ms. Swaim said, “That’s the question.”  Ms. 
Swaim said Staff had never got to this point with a stick built home. 

 
Mr. Muire said Rowan County code does allow the County to abate the nuisance.  
Mr. Muire said there are several hearing procedures that are required for the 
process. 

 
Chairman Chamberlain said the neighbors were being subjected to things they 
should not be and he said the County should tear the house down. 

 
Commissioner Sides asked if there had been any contact with Ms. Blevins’ family 
members.  Ms. Swaim responded that Ms. Blevins told Staff that she does have 
family in Davidson County.  Ms. Swaim said Ms. Blevins told a DSS caseworker 
that she was living with her family members in Davidson County, which was not 
true.  Ms. Swaim said Ms. Blevins had rejected all offers of assistance. 

 
Commissioner Sides emphasized that Staff should try to contact Ms. Blevins’ 
relatives before condemning the house.  Ms. Swaim said the family does know 

 16



about the situation.  Mr. Motsinger said Staff has letters from a niece and 
nephew, which state that they plan to help their aunt rebuild her house but yet, 
nothing happens.   

 
Chairman Chamberlain moved to eliminate the house.  The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Blount and passed 4-1 with Commissioner Sides 
dissenting. 

 
Chairman Chamberlain expressed hope that once the house was gone, it might 
encourage Ms. Blevins to accept assistance. 

 
Chairman Chamberlain called for a short break at 8:50 pm.  Chairman 
Chamberlain reconvened the meeting at 8:55 pm. 

 
For the record, please let it be noted that due to illness Commissioner Tadlock 
left during the break. 
 
12.  BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
ROWAN COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH 
Lee Roy Kirk has resigned from the Board of Health.  An application has been 
received from Rick Parker to fill the remainder of Mr. Kirk’s term, which will expire 
on December 31, 2008. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell moved, Commissioner Blount seconded and the vote to 
accept Lee Roy Kirk’s resignation passed unanimously (4-0).   
 
Commissioner Mitchell nominated Rick Parker to fill the remainder of Mr. Kirk’s 
term and the nomination passed unanimously (4-0). 
 
JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL 
Gordon Whitte has submitted an application to serve in the Under 18 Years of 
Age position.  The Juvenile Crime Prevention Council supports the appointment 
of Mr. Whitte.  The term would begin on October 1, 2006 and would expire on 
June 30, 2008. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell nominated Gordon Whitte and the nomination carried 
unanimously (4-0). 
 
ROWAN TRANSIT SYSTEM ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Rowan County Senior Services Director Clyde Fahnestock is recommending 
Pam Burton to replace Helen Leak as Piedmont Behavioral Healthcare’s 
representative on the Rowan Transit System Advisory Committee.  Members of 
this committee have no defined terms and serve at the pleasure and approval of 
the Board of Commissioners. 
 

 17



Commissioner Blount nominated Pam Burton and the nomination passed 
unanimously (4-0).  
 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS 
Lloyd Pace has recommended Rod Goins, II as an alternate member to the 
Zoning Board of Adjustments.  The term would begin on October 1, 2006 and 
would expire on September 30, 2009. 
 
Commissioner Blount nominated Rod Goins, II and the nomination passed 
unanimously (4-0). 
 
SENIOR SERVICES ADVISORY COUNCIL 
Senior Services Director Clyde Fahnestock has recommended Rick Eldridge, 
Sandra Reitz and Jim Cowan for a reappointment to the Senior Services 
Advisory Council.  The new appointments would begin on November 1, 2006 and 
expire on October 31, 2009. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell moved for the reappointment of Rick Eldridge, Sandra 
Reitz and Jim Cowan and the motion carried unanimously (4-0). 
 
ROWAN COUNTY NURSING HOME ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Allene Louie has submitted an application for reappointment to the Nursing 
Home Advisory Committee.  The terms of appointment would begin on 
November 1, 2006 and expire on October 31, 2009. 
 
Commissioner Blount moved for the reappointment of Allene Louie and the 
motion passed unanimously (4-0). 
 
13.  BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
Chairman Chamberlain opened the floor for discussion pertaining to the budget 
amendments.   
 
Commissioner Sides asked Finance Director Leslie Heidrick to elaborate on the 
budget amendment for the airport.  Ms. Heidrick explained that in June of 2006 
the County was notified by the NCDOT that it would receive $850,000 in funding 
that would require a 10% match for land acquisition. Ms. Heidrick said the 
agreement and the budget amendment was for those funds.  Ms. Heidrick said 
the County’s match of $94,444, was currently in the budget. 
 
Ms. Heidrick said approval was needed for the block grant agreement and the 
resolution, which were attached to the budget amendment. 
 
Commissioner Sides moved for approval of the budget amendment, block grant 
agreement and resolution.  Commissioner Blount seconded and the motion 
carried unanimously. 
 

 18



 19

Commissioner Blount moved, Commissioner Sides seconded and the vote for 
approval of the budget amendments passed unanimously. 
 
14.  PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD  
Chairman Chamberlain opened the Public Comment Period to entertain 
comments from any citizens who wished to address the Board.  With no one 
coming forward, Chairman Chamberlain closed the Public Comment Period. 
 
15.  ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business to come before the Board, Commissioner Blount moved 
to adjourn the meeting at 9:00 pm.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner 
Mitchell and passed unanimously (4-0). 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 

    Carolyn Athey 
     Clerk to the Board 


	CONSIDER ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

